
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTiON AGENCY 
REGION 4 

ATLANTA F[llFHAl CENTER 
~1 r-ORSYTH STREET 


ATLANTA, GEORGIA 30303-8960 


MAY 26 2011 


CERTIfIED MAll 
RETURN REC!,IPT REQUESTED 

Mr. Terry Kemp 
do '-lx. Stanley C. Allen 
Merrill, Merril1~ Mathews: and Allen 
1326 T.eighton A ...enue 
Anniston. Alabama 36207-4614 

Re: Shannon Hills Apartments 

Ratified Consent Agreement and Final Order 

Docket No. TSCA-04-2011·2511(b) 


Dear Mr. Kemp: 

Enclosed is a c-Opy of the ratified Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAfO) in the above~rcferenced 
matter. The original CAf"O has been flied with the Regional Hearing Clerk and served on the parties as 
directed in Section 22.6 of the COilllolidated Rules of Practice, 40 C,F.R Part 22. 

As ~tated in Section V of the CAFO, the assessed penalty of$I.345 is dUJt within 30 days from. the 
effective datI.:. Please ens:ure that the face of your cashier's or certified check includes the name of the 
company and the Docket Number of this case. Penalty payment questions should be directed to 
Mr. Bryson Lehman either by telephone at (5 B) 487-2123 or by written correspondence to his attention 
at the U.s. Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA's) Cincinnati Accounting Opc:r..ttions address: 
identified in the CAFO, Should you have any questions about this matter or their compliance status in 
the future. plea« call me at (404) 562-8979 or Ms Liz Wilde at (404) 562·8998. 

Also enclosed is a copy ofllie October 2001 Enforcement Alert tilled ··U.S. EPA NotifYing Defendants 
of Securities and Exchange Commission '$ Envirorunentai Dlsdosurc Requirements," This document 

",mme! A<Jdrs$$ {VRLI .. http://www>'!pa,\1I'V 
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puts your cHenl on notice of their potential dut)' to disclose to the Securities and Exchange Commission 
any environmental enforcement actions taken by EPA. 

Sincerely, 

Ctlkd~.J?;;n 

a~::me ~1. d'et~le 

Chief 
Pesticide~ and Toxic 

Substances Branch 

Enclosures 



UNITED STATES 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 


ATLANTA, GEORGIA 


IN THE MATTER OF: ) 
) 

Shannon Hills Apartments, ) 
) 

Docket No.: TSCA-04-2011-2S1 l(b)::= 
r ' __,. 

) 
Respondent. ) L; 

-------------------) 
, , 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER 

1. Nature of the Action 

1. 	 This is a civil penalty proceeding pursuant to Section 16(a) of the Toxic Substances 

Control Act (TSCA), ISIJ.S.C. § 2615(a), and pursuant to the Consolidated Rules of 

Practice Governing Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the 

Revocation/Termination or Suspension of Permits (Consolidated Rules), 40 C.F.R. 

Part 22. Complainant is the Director of the Air, Pesticides, and Toxies Management 

Division, U. S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4. Respondent is Shannon 

Hills Apartments. 

2. 	 Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement pursuant to 

40 C.F.R. § 22.18 and desire to resolve this matter and settle the allegations described 

herein without a formal hearing. Therefore, without the taking of any evidence or 

testimony, the making of any argument, or the adjudication of any issue in this matter, 

and in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b), this Consent Agreement and Final Order 

(CAFO) will simultaneously commence and conclude this matter. 
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II. PreUminarv Statements 

3. 	 The Administrator of EPA promulgated regulations at 40 C.F.R. Part 745, Suhpart F 

under the authority of Section 10] 8 of the Residential Lead-Bal>ed Paint Hazard 

Reduction Act of 1992, 42 V.S.c. § 4R52d, also known as Title X of the Housing and 

Community Development A.ct of 1992. Pursuant to Title X. it i5 a prohihited act under 

Section 409 of TSCA, I5 IT.S.C. § 2689. for any person to fail or refuse to comply with a 

provision of Title X or My rule or order issued under Title X. 

4. 	 For purposes ofenforcing Title X under TSCA, the penalty for each violation applicable 

under Section 16 ofTSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2615, shall not he more than $10,000. The Deht 

Collection Improvement Act of 1996 requires EPA to review and adjust penalties, as 

neeessary, jOt inilatiou at IJ;!usl once every four years. A.s such, pursuant to the 

Adjusunem of Civil ~1onelar)' Penallks for Inflation Rule, 40 C.F,R. Part 19, the revised 

maximum penalty for t:ach violalion oc.curring after January 30, 1997, through 

January 12,2009, is $11,000 and for each violation occurring after January 12,2009. the 

maximum penalty is $16,000. 

5. 	 The authority to take fiction under Section 16(a) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2615(a), is vested 

in the Administrator ofEPA. The Administrator ofEPA has delegated this authority 

under TSCA to EPA Region 4 by EPA Delegation 12-2-A, dated May II, 1994. The 

Regional Administrator. Region 4. ha.. rede1egared this authority to the Director, Air, 

PtSliddes and Toxics Management Division, oy EPA Region 4 Delegation 12~2~A. 

Pursuant to the aforementioned IJelegations, the DirectOr of Air, Pesticides and Toxics 

Management Division has authority to commence an enforcement action as the 

Complainant in this maUer. 

Respondent: Shannon Hills Apartments 2 
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6. 	 Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.5(c)(4) the following individual is authorized to receive 

service for EPA in this proceeding: 

Elizabeth L. Wilde 
Lead and Children's Health Section 
t'.S. EPA Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8960 
(404) 562-8998. 

Ill, Specific AllegatiolLs 

7. 	 Respondent is fI Lessor, a'3 defined at 40 C.P.R. § 745.1 03, of residential housing located 

at 79~O McClellan &ulevard, Anniston, Alabama. These residential housing uOlts are 

"target housing:' a.s defined at 40 C.F.R. § 745.103. 

8. 	 Based on information obtained by EPA on or about March 25, 1009, relating to 

Respondent's contracts to lease its target housing described above; EPA alleges that 

Respondent violated Section 409 ofTSCA and 40 c.P.R. Pan 745, Subpart F as follow;: 

a. 	 Pursuant to 40 c.r.R. § 745.107(a)(1), a Lessor shall provide the Lessee an EPA-

approved lead hazard intOnnation pamphlet before the Lessee is obligated under any 

contract to lease target hout:ing. Respondent faile-d to provide Lessees an EPA-

approved pamphlet 

b. 	 Pursuant to 40 c.r.R. § 745.llJ(b)(l), each contract to lea", target hQwing shall 

include, as an attachment to, or wjthin, thc contract a '''Lead Warning Statement", 

Respondent failed to include the required ''-Lead Warning Statement", 

C. 	 Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(2), each contract to lease target hou::sing ::;hail 

include, as an attru.:hment to, or v.rithin, the contract) a statement disclosing the 

presence of known lead~based paint llnd/or lead-based paint ha.zards in the target 

hOtfS-ing being leased or a statement indicating no knowledge of the presence of lead~ 

Respondent: ~'hannon 1Hlls Apartmenrs 3 
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based paint and/or lead~based paim hazards. Respondent failed to include an 

appropriate statement. 

d. 	 Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745. 113(hX3). each contract to lease target housing sholl 

inc1ude~ as an attachment tOt or ",,;rhin. the contract. a Jist ofany records or reports 

available to the Lessor pertaining to lead-based paint andlor lead~baood paint hazards 

in the housing that have heen provided to lh~ Lessee, or an indication that no such 

records or reports are availahle. Respondent failed to lnclude the appropriate 

information, 

IV. Consent Agreement 

9. 	 For the purposes of this CAFO, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations set forth 

above and neither admit'> nor denies the factual allegations set forth aoove. 

10. 	 Respondent waives its right to a hearing on the a1iegatlons contained herein and its right 

to ap~] the pro:posed Final Ord~r accompanying the Consent Agreement 

11. 	 Respondent consents to the assessment of the penalty proposed by EPA and agrees to pay 

the civil penalty as set forth in tlli~ CAFO. 

12. 	 Respondent certifies that as of the date of it.<.; execution ofthh. CAFO, it is in compliance 

with all relevant requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 745, Subpart F. 

13. 	 Compliance with this CAFO shall resolve the allegations of the violations contained 

herein, This CAFO shall not othern1se affect any liability of Respondent to the United 

States. Other than as expressed herein, neither EPA nor Compiainant waives any right to 

bring an enforcement action against Respondent for violation ofany federal or staLe 

statute, regulation or pennit, to initiate an action tor imminent and substantial 

endangcnncnt, or to pursue criminal enforcemenl. 

Respondent Shannon Hills Apartments 4 
Docket No.: TSCA...04-201 1-25 1 I (h) 



14, 	 Complainant and Respondent agree to settle this matter by their execution of this CAPO, 

The parties agree that the settlement ofthls matter is in the public interest and that this 

CAFO is consistent with the applicable requirements of TSCA. 

V. Final Order 

15. 	 Respondent is Il$,"ssed a civil penally ofO;llE TH01::SA;IID THREE H1::NDRED 

Al'll FORTY fiVE DOLI.ARS i$1~;45) which shall be paid within thirty (30) days of 

the effective date. 

16. 	 Re~pondent ~hal1 remit the penalty payment by either a cashier's or certified check made 

payable to the "Treasurer, United States of America." 

The Respondent shall note on the face of the check the 
Respondent's Name and the Docket Number associated witb tbis CAFO. 

The penalty payment shall he sent by one of the following methods to the address 

indentified for the method chosen: 

Address for payment suhmtl1al using the United States Postal Service: 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 
Cincinnati Finance Center 
PO Box <)79077 
SI. Louis. Missouri 63197-9000. 

Address fur payment submittal using other mail ~ervice (e.g" Federal Express, 
United Parcel Service (UPS), DHL. etc,): 

V,S, Bonk 
1005 Convt'ntion Pla:.::a 
Mail Station SL-MO-C2GL 
SL Louis, Missouri 63101 
Contact Person: Kalalie Pearson (314) 418-4087. 

Respondent Shannon Hills Apartments 5 
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17. 	 At thc time of payment, Respondent shall send a separate copy of the check and a written 

statement that the payment is being made in accordance with thj~ CAPO, to the fonowing 

persons at the follO\ving addresses: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. EPA Region 4 
61 Fo"yth Street 
Allanta, Georgia 30303-8960; 

Elizabeth L Wilde 
Lead and Children -s Health Section 
U.S. EPA Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta. (Jeorgia 30303-8960; and 

Saundi Wilson 
Office of Environmental AC\.-'OUfltability 
U.s. EPA Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street 

Atlanta. Georgia 30303-8960. 


18. 	 Por the purposes of state and federal income taxation, Respondent shall not be entitled, 

and agrees not to attempt, to claim a deduction for any civil penalty payment pursuant to 

this CAFO. Any attempt by Respondent to deduct any such payments shan constitute a 

violation ufthis CAFO. 

19. 	 Pursuant to 31 u.s.c § 3717, EPA is entitled to ~ess interest and penalties on debts 

owed to the United States and a c.harge to cover the cost ofprocc:$sing and handling a 

delinquent claim. Interest will therefore begin to accrue un the civiJ penalty from the date 

ofentry of this CAFO, if the penalty is not paid by the dale required A charge wilt also 

he a"'sessed to cover the administrative costs, both direct and jndirect, ofoverdue debts. 

In addition, a lute payment penalty charge shall be applied on any principal amount not 

paid \virhin 90 days ofthe due date. 

Respondent: Shannon Kills Apartments 6 
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20. 	 Complainant and Respondent shall bear their own costs and attorncy fees in this mattcL 

21. 	 'nlls CAFO shall be binding upon the Respondent, its successors and assigns. 

22. 	 Each undersigned representative of the parties to this CAFO certifies that he or she is 

fuHy authorized by the party represented to enter into this CAFO !Uld legally binds that 

party to this CAPO. 

THE REMAlNDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 
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VI. Eliective Date 

23. 	 The effective date ofihis CAFO shall be the date on whlch the CAFO is filed \\-lth the 

Region.1 Hearing Clerk, 

AGREED AND CONSENTED TO: 

Respondent: Shannon Uills Apartments 
Docket No.: TSCA-04-2011-2511(b) 

Date: 

Title: 

Complainant: u.s. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

By: 
...~~ 
Air, Pesticides and TOXlcS 


Management Division 


~. 

APPROVED AND SO ORDERED this,;M" day of ,20] L 

By: ~,,=:4~ Date: __s:J.'.7.=.L.(~!'.'/!__ 
Susan B, Schub 
Regional JudiciaJ Officer 

Respondent: ShannQI!. Hill!; Apartments 
Docket :-.10.: TSCA-{}4~2CH 1-2511(b} 



) hereby certify that on the date set out below, I filed the ()riginal and one copy of the 

foregoing Consent Agreement and Final Order and served a. true and correct copy of the 

foregoing Consent Agreement and Final Order, In the Matter of Shannon Hills Apartments, 

Docket Number: TSCA-04-20! 1-2S11(b), to the addressees listed below. 

Mr. Stanley C. Allen (via Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested) 
Merrill, Merrill, Mathews, and Atkm 
1326 Leighton Avenue 
Anniston. Alahama 36207-4614 

Elizabeth L. Wilde (via EPA's internal mail) 
Lead and Children'S Heal1h Section 
U.S. EPA Region 4 
61 .Forsyth Street 
Atlanta. Georgia 30303 

Robert Caplan (via EPA's internal mail) 
Office ofEnviromnemal Accountability 
U.S. EPA Region 4 
61 FOTsy1h Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Date:BY~cr 
Patricia A. Bullock 

Regional Hearing Clerk 

U.S. EPA Region 4 

61 Forsyth Street 

Atlanta, GA 30303 

(404) 562-9511 
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